

Table of Contents

UPLIFT MISSION AND VISION	7
History of Uplift Education.	7
Governance	7
COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE	9
School Commitment	9
Parents/Guardian Commitment	10
Scholar Commitment	11
Open Enrollment Charter Schools	12
Nondiscrimination Policy	12
School Admission and Enrollment	13
Sibling Exemption:	13
Lottery Process	14
Currently Enrolled Scholars	14
Attendance on the First Day of School	15
ARRIVAL AND DISMISSAL PROCEDURES:	15
Arrival to School	15
Dismissal	16
Scholar Walkers	16
After School Procedures	17
After-School Activities – Scholar Pick Up	17
Early Pick Up of Scholars	17



Designation of Parent/Guardian Pick up	17
Closed Campus - Leaving Campus During School Hours	18
ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS:	18
COMMUNICATION WITH PARENTS:	21
ACADEMIC EXPECTATIONS & REQUIREMENTS	22
ACADEMIC HONOR CODE	22
Academic Honesty	24
Off-Campus P.E.	25
Athletics -Credit	26
Athletic and Extracurricular Activities	26
Scholar Athletic Code	27
CLUBS AND ORGANIZATIONS	28
BEYOND THE CLASSROOM	29
Community Service:	29
Field Trips:	29
College Trips:	29
HOMEWORK AND TESTING GUIDELINES:	30
Homework -Primary	30
STAAR Testing and Remediation	30
SAT and ACT	31
Aiding Students Who Have Learning Difficulties or Who Need Special Ed Section 504 Services	
Contact Person for Special Education Referrals:	33
Contact Person for Section 504 Referrals:	33



D	DISCIPLINE/CHOICE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM	34
	Interrogations and Searches	34
U	NIFORM AND DRESS	34
P	ARENT LEGAL AND INFORMATION NOTICES	35
	Scholar Records Access and Privacy	35
	Inappropriate Use of Technology	36
	Pledge of Allegiance/Minute of Silence	36
	Equal Access – Free Speech	36
	Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment ("PPRA")	37
	Media Release and Use of Photographs:	38
	School Closings or Delay	38
	Emergency Preparedness:	38
	Equal Opportunity – Nondiscrimination:	38
	Drug and Alcohol-Free School:	39
	Teacher Qualifications – Parent's Right to Know:	39
	Career and Technology Nondiscrimination:	39
	Military Recruiter Access:	40
	Scholar or Parent Complaints and Concerns	40
	STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES	41
	Social/Behavioral Counseling Services	41
	McKinney-Vento Homeless Services	41
	Services for Scholars in Foster Care	41
	Prevention Programming	41
	Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting.	42



Bullying	42
Sexual Harassment	42
CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM	43
School Meals	43
Meal Pricing	43
Free & Reduced-priced Meals	43
Prepayments	43
Lunch Visitations	44
SCHOLAR HEALTH INFORMATION	44
Medication Administration:	44
Asthma and Anaphylaxis Medication	45
Diabetes Management	46
Illness during School Hours	47
Immunizations Requirements	47
State Mandated Health Screenings for Scholars	49
Updated Health Information	50
ENGAGING FAMILIES	51
Communication	51
Internet Communication	51
The Uplift webs	51
Parent/Teacher Conferences	52
Parent Volunteers in Partnership	52
APPENDIX	56



- B Anti-bullying Policy
- C Freedom from Discrimination, Harrassment, and Retaliation Scholar Policy
- D Acceptable Use Policy Technology
- E First Day of School Attendance Policy
- F Uplift Credit and Academic Policy
- G Uplift Grading Policy Grades 6-12
- H Parent Grievance Policy
- I– Child Nutrition Program Charge Policy
- J Dress and Uniform Requirements (School specific)
- K—Behavior Management Plan (School specific)



PURPOSE OF THIS HANDBOOK:

This handbook contains information that both scholars and parents need for reference during the school year. It covers a number of topics designed to give scholars and parents a general overview of Uplift policy and school policy and procedure. Please be aware that not all topics related to your school or Uplift can or will be included in this handbook, however, it is designed to cover those areas which we believe are most important to your child's success in this Uplift school. Please be aware that this handbook is updated yearly, while policy adoption or revision and changes in the law may occur throughout the year. Changes in policy or law that affect handbook provisions will be made available to scholars and parents through newsletters, the school website, and other communications. In case of conflict between board policy and any provision of this handbook, the provision that was most recently adopted by the Uplift Board will be followed.

Please review this entire handbook and keep it as reference during the school year. If you have any questions about the information in the handbook, please contact your Campus Director.

This handbook will also be available on the school website.

As used in this handbook, "Uplift" or "the District" refers to Uplift Education which is the charter holder and legal entity governing all Uplift schools. The term "school" refers to the specific Uplift school your child attends. The term "parent" also includes a legal guardian.

In addition to this handbook, each school may have school-specific procedures that will be included in the Appendix. Questions regarding the procedures or requirements at your school should be directed to the appropriate Campus Director.



UPLIFT MISSION AND VISION

Uplift Pledge

I pledge to do my best this day. To honor myself and others In everything I do.

To accept responsibility for my own learning and to encourage others, as I embrace my own opportunities to grow

To exercise leadership and prepare myself for college at every opportunity! For me, mediocrity is not an option; Only excellence will do.

Who I am has value.
What I think has value
Who I will become is invaluable to the world.

Uplift's mission is to create and sustain public schools of excellence that empower all scholars to reach their highest potential in college and the global marketplace and that inspire in scholars a life-long love of learning, achievement, and service in order to positively change their world.

History of Uplift Education

Uplift Education ("Uplift") was formed in 1996 as "The North Hills School" and was one of the first nonprofits to receive a charter from the State of Texas to operate an open-enrollment charter school. Uplift opened its first school in 1997 in Irving, Texas. Since that first charter school was opened, Uplift has expanded to 21 locations in the Dallas – Fort Worth region. Approximately 20,500 scholars will be enrolled in Uplift schools for the 2019-2020 school year. Uplift's commitment to providing a high-quality college preparatory education is evident in its success to date. In 2019, Uplift graduated more than 840 seniors, 100% of whom were accepted into college. Uplift expects to continue to expand its network and to welcome more scholars and families into Uplift schools.

Governance

Uplift is a Texas non-profit corporation and is also a tax-exempt organization under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Uplift is governed by a Board of Directors which generally meets monthly in an open meeting. Each school is also supported by a local advisory council which supports the mission of the local school in its strategic and academic goals. These local councils meet with school leaders as determined by the school leader and council chair, but at least quarterly. If you have any questions about Uplift



Education generally or the governance structure, please contact the central management office at 469-621-8500.

Public Charter Schools:

The Texas Legislature created the opportunity for public charter schools in 1995 when the original charter law was enacted. The purposes of the law were to: (1) improve student learning; (2) increase choice of learning opportunities within public schools; (3) encourage different and innovative learning methods; and (4) establish a new form of accountability for public schools. Charter schools accordingly operate with more flexibility than traditional public schools and are exempted from some laws that apply to traditional public schools. If you have questions about the differences between traditional public schools and public charter schools, please contact your school director or the Central Management Office.

INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE PROGRAM:

Uplift models its academic program on the rigorous International Baccalaureate (IB) Program. Uplift is in the process of obtaining authorization to offer the K-12 IB continuum for all its schools. The aim of the International Baccalaureate (IB) Program is to develop internationally minded people who, recognizing their common humanity and shared guardianship of the planet help to create a better and more peaceful world. This mission implies a commitment to help all members of the school community learn to respect themselves, others, and the world around them. Each of the IB programmes is committed to the development of students according to the IB learner profile, a broad range of human capacities and responsibilities that go beyond academic success. The profile aims to develop learners who are:

Inquirers: They develop their natural curiosity. They acquire the skills necessary to conduct inquiry and research and show independence in learning. They actively enjoy learning and this love of learning will be sustained throughout their lives.

Knowledgeable: They explore concepts, ideas and issues that have local and global significance. In so doing, they acquire in-depth knowledge and develop understanding across a broad and balanced range of disciplines.

Thinkers: They exercise initiative in applying thinking skills critically and creatively to recognize and approach complex problems and make reasoned, ethical decisions.

Communicators: They understand and express ideas and information confidently and creatively in more than one language and in a variety of modes of communication. They work effectively and willingly in collaboration with others.

Principled: They act with integrity and honesty, with a strong sense of fairness, justice and respect for the dignity of the individual, groups and communities. They take responsibility for their own actions and consequences that accompany them.



Open-minded: They understand and appreciate their own cultures and personal histories, and are open to the perspectives, values and traditions of other individuals and communities. They are accustomed to seeking and evaluating a range of points of view and are willing to grow from the experience.

Caring: They show empathy, compassion and respect towards the needs and feelings of others. They have a personal commitment to service, and act to make a positive difference to the lives of others and to the environment.

Risk-takers: They approach unfamiliar situations and uncertainty with courage and forethought and have the independence of spirit to explore new roles, ideas and strategies. They are brave and articulate in defending their beliefs.

Balanced: They understand the importance of intellectual, physical and emotional balance to achieve personal well-being for themselves and others.

Reflective: They give thoughtful consideration to their own learning and experience. They are able to assess and understand their strengths and limitations in order to support their learning and personal development.

COMMITMENT TO EXCELLENCE

Uplift believes that for scholars to be fully successful, the school, parents, and scholars must work together. The Commitment to Excellence Compact is an accountability statement which puts into words those commitments which reflect our organizational symbol -- the triangle. These commitments are the underpinnings of the "whole village" concept – "it takes a village to raise a child." Each triangular side depicts the one of the three areas of responsibility necessary to ensure each scholar's academic success: School-professional community, Parent/Guardian-home, and Scholar-individual.

This Compact is made between Uplift, the school, the scholar, and the parent/guardian, in the shared pursuit of a rigorous college preparatory education and leadership development for the academic year.

School Commitment

We believe that every child ...

- Has the capacity to learn, grow, and develop into a knowledgeable, reflective, caring, ethical, and contributing citizen.
- Must have access to the very best programs and practices a school can offer.
- Must be engaged in learning that is relevant, challenging, integrative, and exploratory.



- Thrives academically, socially, and emotionally in a democratic learning environment where trust and respect are paramount and where family and community are actively involved.
- Faces significant life choices and needs support in making wise and healthy decisions.
- Deserves educators who are prepared to work with this age group, who are themselves lifelong learners and who are committed to their own ongoing professional development and growth.

Therefore, we proudly dedicate ourselves to becoming the best school educators that we can be and an active advocate for all children and youth.

As part of the school faculty, I fully agree with and commit to the following:

- I will exhibit the rigor required to ensure actions are based on educational best practices and will do whatever it takes to meet individual scholar needs.
- I will attend and participate in all staff meetings and professional development to ensure best teaching practices become universal for continuous improvement.
- I will "go the extra mile" by being available before and after school to work with scholars and parents by addressing any concerns.
- I will respond to communications from scholars and parents within twenty-four (24) hours during the school week.
- I will remain focused on standards and excellence leading to results that support and implement the mission of Uplift and the school.
- I will utilize data to support and measure curricular and academic achievement.
- I will protect the safety and well-being of all Uplift and the school Community members and further organizational goals by enforcing all rules, codes, policies, procedures and values of Uplift and the school.
- I will promote Uplift and the school, its staff, scholars and community in a positive way at all times.
- I will contribute to the school by offering my suggestions in constructive ways.
- As a returning member to the Uplift and the school community, I will offer my support and guidance through modeling, chairing of events and helping out where I can to support new to staff and new teachers. I will also actively seek out leadership opportunities for myself and communicate these with the Campus Director.

Parents/Guardian Commitment

As a parent, I fully agree with and commit to the following:



- I will make sure our child arrives at school every day before the start of classes and is there until school is dismissed for the day every instructional day on the school calendar unless my child is sick or there is an emergency.
- I will pick my child up from school on time or accept the consequences or penalties.
- I will notify the School if my child is unable to attend school. I understand that daily attendance is essential to scholar success.
- I will make arrangements so my child can be at school before or after the school day for tutoring, detention or other after school programs when required or needed.
- I will always help my child in the best way I know how and I will do whatever it takes for him/her to learn. This also means that I will check my child's homework every night, let him/her contact the teacher if there is a problem with the homework, and try to read with him/her every night.
- I will communicate respectfully with faculty and staff.
- I will read all papers that the School sends home, sign if necessary, and return the next day.
- I will participate in all meetings and conferences concerning my child.
- I will support the academic expectations and curricular programs of the school including allowing our child to go on school field trips, including out-of-town experiences.
- I will be a role model for my child as I follow the rules, codes, policies, procedures and the core values established by the school.
- I will adhere to school attendance policies ensuring the academic success of my child.
- I will ensure that my child follows the school rules, codes, policies and procedures so as to protect the safety, interests and rights of all individuals in the classroom. I will support the school as it administers consequences in response to scholar behavioral choices in accordance to the school policy.
- I will support the school and my child by signing up for volunteer work and make a good faith effort to complete the recommended volunteer hours for each parent/guardian.

Scholar Commitment

As a Scholar, I fully agree with and commit to the following:

- I will arrive at school every day by the start of classes in order to guarantee a full instructional day.
- I will strive to become a global citizen by acting as a thinker, risk-taker and balanced scholar.
- I will approach my learning with creativity, curiosity and enthusiasm.



- I will attend tutoring, detention or any other support services that are needed as required by school officials.
- I will attend each day any mandatory summer program and/or Saturday programs.
- I will work, communicate and behave in accordance with the school's honor code.
- I will complete all of my homework every night and attend each session of any required or assigned enrichment program.
- I will contact my teachers if I have a question or concern related to my academic or social well-being.
- I will be respectful and cooperative toward my parents and teachers.
- I will be principled in all my actions and accept responsibility for them.
- I will be knowledgeable of and follow all school rules, codes, policies and procedures.
- I will always behave in a caring manner that protects the safety, interests and rights of all individuals in the classroom and school community.
- I will conduct myself in an inquiring manner that is conducive for learning.
- I will be a reflective, open-minded member of my learning community who will show empathy, tolerance and respect.
- I will maintain academic integrity ensuring my work is my own.

Note: This Commitment to Excellence is reviewed regularly and parent input is sought in the review process. Notice of opportunities for parents to participate in the review will be provided by the Campus Director or the Title I Coordinator.

ADMISSION AND ENROLLMENT

Open Enrollment Charter Schools

Uplift operates a network of open-enrollment public charter schools. Charter schools are public schools of choice and part of the public education system in Texas. However, charter schools are not subject to all of the laws that apply to traditional public schools. One of those exceptions is in the admission process. Charter schools are allowed to limit the number of scholars admitted based on the maximum enrollment allowed by the charter. If included in the charter, scholars with serious discipline issues may be excluded from admission. For more information about charter schools generally, view the Texas Education Agency website — charter schools and frequently asked questions. www.tea.texas.gov.

Nondiscrimination Policy

Uplift does not discriminate in admissions on the basis of gender, national origin, ethnicity, religion, disability, academic, artistic or athletic ability, sexual orientation or gender identity, or the district the child would otherwise attend.



However, in accordance with the Uplift charter, an applicant who has a documented history of a criminal offense, a juvenile court adjudication, or serious discipline problems (as defined under Subchapter A, Chapter 37 of the Texas Education Code), may be denied admission.

School Admission and Enrollment

Admission and enrollment of scholars is open to any person who resides within the geographic boundaries defined in the charter and who is eligible for admission based on the lawful criteria identified in the charter. The total number of scholars enrolled in the school may not exceed the maximum number of scholars approved in the charter.

Uplift schools have an established application period during which applications are accepted. Any person who lives within the geographic boundaries of the charter is eligible to apply. Parents must complete an online application form and submit it to the school prior to the application deadline in order to participate in the lottery (or to be admitted to the school if there is no lottery). The application deadlines will be posted on the school and Uplift website. The number of available spaces in each grade will be determined prior to the lottery date. Certain applicants are exempt from the lottery to the extent spaces are available and provided an application is submitted prior to the application deadline. Those exemptions include siblings of currently enrolled scholars, children of school staff and children of the Uplift founders. Siblings must complete an application in order to have this exemption apply.

Sibling Exemption: For the purpose of the sibling exemption from the lottery, a "sibling" is defined as a person who shares a common parent through birth, marriage, adoption, legal guardianship, or foster care. Sibling" shall also include the following:

- **Step-sibling**. In order to be eligible for the sibling exemption, a step-sibling must live in the same household as the currently enrolled scholar at least 50% of the time.
- Court documentation reflecting custody. A child who is the custody of a parent/guardian under a court order signed by a State of Texas judge shall be considered a "sibling" for purposes of the exemption. Before admission will be granted, a parent/guardian is required to provide current court documentation specifically stating the parent/guardian has legal custody of the child. Uplift Education reserves the right to investigate any request for the sibling exemption under this provision. Should Uplift Education determine that a child was enrolled under this provision of the sibling exemption under fraudulent means, such child shall be immediately withdrawn from Uplift Education, as well as any other child the parent/guardian has enrolled in Uplift Education. This provision does not include Powers of Attorney, or any similar document.
- **Foster children**. A child who is the custody of a foster parent shall be considered a "sibling" for purposes of the exemption. Before admission will be granted, a foster parent is required to provide current documentation from the applicable State of Texas agency specifically stating the person has legal custody of the child. Uplift



Education reserves the right to investigate any request for the sibling exemption under this provision. Should Uplift Education determine that a child was enrolled under this provision of the sibling exemption under fraudulent means, such child shall be immediately withdrawn from Uplift Education, as well as any other child the person has enrolled in Uplift Education. This provision does not include Powers of Attorney, or any similar legal document.

• No other definition of "sibling" applies. Outside of the above definitions of "sibling," no other school age child living in the same household all or part of the time will be eligible for the sibling exemption.

Note: Kindergarten scholars must be 5 years of age on September 1st in order to enroll and first grade scholars must be 6 on September 1st.

Applicants with a documented history of a criminal offense, a juvenile court adjudication, or serious discipline problems may be denied admission. If this information is not disclosed in the application and is later discovered by the school, the applicant's admission will be revoked.

Lottery Process

If more applications are received prior to the application deadline than spaces are available, the School will conduct a lottery or random drawing for the available spaces. Scholars admitted through the lottery will be notified and asked to submit notice of acceptance by a published deadline. Those scholars who accept admittance will continue the enrollment process. Scholars not admitted through the lottery will be placed on a waiting list. If a space becomes available after the lottery is conducted, the space will be offered to the scholars on the waiting list in the order listed. Applications received after the lottery deadlines are added to the waiting list in the order received.

Currently Enrolled Scholars

Once scholars are admitted to the school, they are not required to participate in the lottery or admission process, but they will be asked to indicate their intent to return to the school by completing the re-enrollment process which usually occurs in the early spring.

A scholar who withdraws during the school year must reapply to be eligible for readmission. Applications will be accepted prior to the application deadline and the scholar must be selected in the lottery in order to be re-admitted. Note: If a scholar withdraws prior to a pending disciplinary action, additional requirements may apply. See Code of Conduct. (Appendix A.)



Attendance on the First Day of School

Uplift schools begin the school year earlier than traditional school districts. Scholars are expected to be present on the first day of school and if they are not, they will not be counted as enrolled in the school and they may lose their space in the school. Absences due to emergencies or illness may be considered as acceptable reasons for not attending the first day of school. See process outlined in the First Day of School Policy (Appendix D).

Additional Information about the admission process may be obtained from the Campus Director or Community Engagement and Enrollment Coordinator. Information about application deadlines and the enrollment process will also be posted on the school and Uplift websites.

Transfers

Uplift does not permit transfers between Uplift schools unless required by law or in certain circumstances determined by the Uplift Transfer Committee as being good cause for a transfer. Transfers will not be permitted for convenience or because a family may have moved closer to another Uplift school. Families are permitted to apply for up to three Uplift schools during the application process and if drawn for more than one school, may choose the school they wish for their child to attend. Contact the Community Engagement and Enrollment Coordinator for more information.

ARRIVAL AND DISMISSAL PROCEDURES:

Arrival to School

Scholars are <u>not</u> to arrive at school before the designated time for the school doors to be opened. Until such time as the school doors are opened, it is the responsibility of parents to ensure the health and safety of their scholars. There is no adult supervision provided by Uplift before the opening of school. If at any time school administration is concerned about the health and safety of a scholar, appropriate State officials shall be notified. This may include law enforcement or Child Protective Services (CPS).

- Doors generally open for scholars at 7:30 a.m.
- If a scholar arrives excessively early, a phone call will be made to the parent to remind them of the school's procedure regarding arrival to school and our concern for the scholar's safety. If the scholar continues to arrive before the designated time for the school doors to open, the school may impose consequences as determined appropriate by the school administration or notify State officials as addressed above.



• It is the responsibility of parents to ensure scholars do not loiter around local businesses or homes.

Dismissal

Scholars are prohibited from remaining on school grounds after dismissal unless they participate in a school sponsored after-school program. It is the responsibility of parents to ensure their scholars are not on school grounds after dismissal. Outside of school sponsored after-school programming there is no adult supervision provided by Uplift after the dismissal of school. If at any time school administration is concerned about the health and safety of a scholar, appropriate State officials shall be notified. This may include law enforcement or Child Protective Services (CPS).

- Parents who pick up their child at dismissal must do so following carpool guidelines distributed by the school at the beginning of the year. These guidelines are implemented for the safety of all scholars.
- A parent who wishes to pick up his/her scholar before dismissal must go to the main office in person to sign the scholar out. (See section below about picking up scholars early.)
- It is the responsibility of parents and legal guardians to ensure scholars do not loiter around local businesses or homes.

Scholar Walkers

A signed consent form from a parent must be on file in the campus office in order for a scholar to leave campus by walking. Scholars who leave campus by walking shall be dismissed at the regular dismissal time along with all other scholars and are prohibited from remaining on school grounds after dismissal. It is the responsibility of parents to ensure the health and safety of scholars after dismissal from school and to ensure scholars are aware of any change in plan for their dismissal. Only scholars in Middle School and High School will be allowed to leave campus by walking alone. Scholars in Primary School may only leave campus by walking so long as an older sibling picks them up first. Outside of school sponsored after-school programming there is no adult supervision provided by Uplift after the dismissal of school. If at any time school administration is concerned about the health and safety of a scholar, appropriate State officials shall be notified. This may include law enforcement or Child Protective Services (CPS).

• It is the responsibility of parents to ensure scholars do not loiter around local businesses or homes.



After School Procedures

It is the responsibility of a parent to ensure his/her scholar is not on school grounds after dismissal and that the scholar is aware of what he/she is to do at dismissal, such as whether the parent will pick-up the scholar after-school, if the scholar is leaving the campus by walking, if the scholar is participating in a school sponsored after-school activity, or the like, as well as any change to what the scholar is to do at dismissal. If a scholar is being picked-up at school by a parent, the scholar is responsible for going immediately to the parent's car when it arrives.

Outside of school sponsored after-school programming there is no adult supervision provided by Uplift after the dismissal of school. If at any time school administration is concerned about the health and safety of a scholar, appropriate State officials shall be notified. This may include law enforcement or Child Protective Services (CPS).

After-School Activities - Scholar Pick Up

Scholars must be picked up immediately at the end of an after-school activity (tutorials, sports, practice, etc.). If a scholar is in a supervised after-school activity, the teacher/sponsor will wait with the scholars in front of the school or gymnasium for 15 minutes after that activity ends, to allow for pick-up. A parent consent form must be on file with the school if a scholar is to leave the campus by walking (please see above).

After the 15 minute period, no adult supervision will be provided by Uplift. If at any time school administration is concerned about the health and safety of a scholar, appropriate State officials shall be notified. This may include law enforcement or Child Protective Services (CPS).

Early Pick Up of Scholars

For early pick up, parents must go to the front office/attendance office and sign their child out of school. If there is an emergency or special circumstance, please call the office ahead of time to make arrangements. Scholars will not be released to anyone not listed in the scholar's file as a person authorized to pick up the child. Only after the parent or other authorized person signs the child out will the child be released to the parent or other authorized person. Once the after—school dismissal process has started, scholars will not be allowed to leave early and the parent must follow the established dismissal procedures for the safety of all scholars.

Designation of Parent/Guardian Pick up

As part of the enrollment process, the scholar's parent / guardian must designate the persons who are authorized to pick up the scholar from school. Only a parent or those additional authorized persons will be allowed to pick up the scholar. If it is necessary for



someone other than the designated person to pick up the child, the parent must notify the school in writing and specifically identify the person who will be picking up their child. School personnel will require proper identification of the person before releasing the child.

Family Disputes or Custody Issues

The school will assume both parents have equal right to access to their child, including the right to pick up the child from school, unless the school has been provided with a court order which specifically limits the access of the parent to his or her child at the school. A divorce decree setting out custody or visitation schedules is not sufficient to prohibit access of a parent unless the decree specifically so provides. Parents involved in divorce or custody proceedings should make every effort to manage these issues without disruption to the scholar or school environment. Parents who fail to comply with this request may be removed from the school campus by the police.

The school will not be involved in decisions relating to custody or family disputes, including but not limited to, decisions relating to picking up a child from school. It is the responsibility of parents, and not the school or Uplift Education, to ensure the correct parent is picking up the child from school. Uplift Education is not responsible for enforcing a custody order. If a parent is concerned about whether a custody order is being adhered to, he or she is directed to contact law enforcement or a court of law.

Closed Campus - Leaving Campus During School Hours

The school operates on the closed campus concept. Scholars are not allowed to leave campus during the school day, including during meal periods, without first obtaining permission from the Campus Director. At no time are scholars allowed to leave the campus without prior permission from parents and the Campus Director. Parent approval must be documented by either written note or by a school documented phone call. If a scholar is authorized to leave early, the scholar must sign out in the main office or with the attendance clerk before leaving campus.

ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS:

At Uplift, we believe that every school day is critical. In order to set clear expectations for scholars and signal instruction time is paramount, we expect all scholars to be present each and every day of school, **beginning the first day of school**. If an absence is unavoidable, a parent should call the main office/attendance officer before 8:30 a.m. on the date of the absence with the reason for the scholar's absence. **Teachers are not responsible for communicating this**



information to the office. All absences will be verified by the school attendance office and if the school has not been notified of the absence, the absence will be recorded as "unexcused." It is important that the parent calls in and speaks directly to the person in charge of attendance. If the parent cannot reach the attendance officer, an email message may be sent to the attendance officer or a message may be left on the school's voice mail. However, it is the parent's responsibility to verify the message was received.

When the scholar returns to school, the scholar must provide the main office or attendance clerk with a note signed by a parent explaining the reason for the absence. If a note is not provided within three school days of the scholar's return, the absence will be marked "unexcused." (Example: If a scholar is absent on Monday and returns to school on Tuesday, then Tuesday would be considered day one; Wednesday, day two; and Thursday, day three.

Excused Absences: The following situations are excused absences if the required documentation is provided:

- **Personal Illness:** A note signed by a parent must be given to the main office or attendance clerk when the scholar returns to school. If the personal illness exceeds three consecutive days, a statement from a physician or health clinic verifying the illness or other condition causing the scholar's extended absence from school is required. If a scholar has excessive absences due to personal illness, the Campus Director, at the Campus Director's discretion, may require a physician's or clinic's statement of illness after a single day's absence to excuse the absence.
- Medical appointments: An appointment with a health care professional is excused if the scholar provides documentation of the visit. Parents are encouraged to schedule appointments outside school hours if possible or after the second period when attendance is taken. If unable to schedule a medical appointment outside of school hours, parents are encouraged to bring the scholar for the portion of the day they are not in the doctor's office.
- Observance of religious holidays: Scholars may be excused for the purpose of observing religious holy days. If it is necessary to travel for the purposes of observing the holiday, only one day of travel to and one day for travel from the site where the scholar will observe the religious holy day is excused. The Campus Director may require a letter from the religious leader documenting the need for travel or the basis of the religious holiday if the holiday is not an easily recognized or



common religious holiday. Travel to attend a baptism or a wedding, for example, is not an excused absence under this category.

- Extracurricular activities: Participation in a school-approved and supervised extracurricular activity is excused.
- College trips: Junior and senior scholars may be excused for up to two days each year to visit an accredited college or institution of higher education for the purpose of determining the scholar's interest in attending the college or institution, provided the trip is approved in advance by the RTC counselor or Campus Director. (See Guidelines for Visiting College Campuses available from RTC Counselor.) The scholar must provide documentation of the visit when returning to school.
- Attendance at required court appearances: If a scholar is required to appear at court including truancy court the absence may be excused. A copy of the subpoena or court hearing notice requiring the scholar to appear should be presented upon return to the school.
- Naturalization ceremonies: Appearance at a governmental office to complete paperwork required in connection with the scholar's application for U.S. citizenship or taking part in a U.S. naturalization oath ceremony is excused if documentation of the appearance is provided.
- Death or serious illness in immediate family: Attendance at a funeral for an immediate family member (parents, siblings, and grandparents) may be excused for up to three days if travel is required, unless a longer period is approved by the Campus Director. An absence due to the serious illness of immediate family members (as defined above) may be excused for up to three days (including travel). A note from the parent is required upon return.
- Military deployment of parent: Absence for the purpose of a scholar visiting with his or her parent prior to the parent's leave or deployment, not to exceed three days per year, may be excused unless a longer period is approved by the Campus Director. A note from the parent is required upon return.
- Other Absences: Notwithstanding the above, other absences may be excused at the discretion of Uplift Education. Uplift Education's decision on whether to excuse an absence is final.



Truancy/Non-Compliance with Attendance Law

A scholar is required to attend school under the law (TEC §25.085). A scholar who has unexcused absence(s) is considered truant and will be subject to disciplinary action and/or truancy proceedings. Truancy action may be brought for failure to comply with the compulsory attendance law if a scholar is absent without excuse on ten or more days or parts of days within a six month period or three or more days or parts of days within a four week period. Please check with the attendance clerk at the school if you have any questions about these provisions.

WITHDRAWAL FROM SCHOOL:

A scholar under the age of 18 may be withdrawn from school only by a parent. The school requests notice from the parent at least three days in advance so that records and documents may be prepared. Parents may be asked to meet with an administrator before proceeding with the withdrawal process. It is important that let the school know the name of the school to which the scholar is transferring so that records can be sent promptly.

COMMUNICATION WITH PARENTS:

Communication with parents is very important to the successful school experience. The School may use a variety of methods of communication, such as those listed below. Do not hesitate to reach out to the teacher or Campus Director if you have any questions or concerns about your child or communication with or from the School. The following are examples of common communication methods:

Method of Communication	Frequency	Purpose
Scholar Planner	Daily	All scholars will use their planner to record homework and long range assignments, projects, and tests. The planner will also be used for other general planning purposes.
Tuesday Folder	Weekly	Send home school-wide events and documents (i.e. parent-forms, calendar of events, lunch menu, fundraisers, progress reports, etc.)
Written Communication	As Needed	Communicates a scholar's level of success in following the classroom management plan (i.e. notices of exceptional behavior, choice management referrals, classroom detention forms, etc.)
Parent Link	As Needed	Campus employees use this software to send messages in a phone call, email and text message.
Uplift App	As Needed	Parents can set the app to send notifications when grades are entered, lunch account balances are low, library books are late, or check the campus calendar and add events to their own cell calendar.



PowerSchool	As	Scholar grade and attendance information can be accessed through the
	requested/Accessed	PowerSchool Public Portal. Parents can also sign up for daily, weekly or
		monthly emails with grade and attendance reports

ACADEMIC EXPECTATIONS & REQUIREMENTS

Grade Placement and Retention

Uplift schools provide a rigorous academic program that is designed to prepare all scholars for success in college. As such, the graduation requirements and academic standards are higher than traditional public school programs. While Uplift is committed to the principle that all scholars can succeed, Uplift reserves the right to determine grade placement and/or retention based on guidelines that ensure a scholar is prepared for the grade in which they are enrolled. Placement decisions in the primary and middle school are determined by a number of factors, including performance on standardized tests, internal assessments, emotional maturity and readiness for advancement, and school attendance, among others. The recommendation for placement or retention is made by the school administration in consultation with the managing director for the campus. Please contact the Campus Director if you have any questions or concerns about your child's performance or placement.

For high school scholars, the Uplift Education Credit Policy describes the credits required to graduate as well as credits necessary for grade placement, and procedures for credit recovery and transfer credits. Please contact the academic counselor if you have questions or concerns about this policy. (Policy is included in Appendix F.)

ACADEMIC HONOR CODE

Honor Code:

"To promote a stronger sense of mutual responsibility, respect, trust, and fairness among all members of the school family, I pledge, on my Honor, not to lie, cheat, or steal in either my academic or personal life, or tolerate those who do."



Every scholar is expected to uphold the highest standards of honor with regard to academics, activities, and other related pursuits. By means of the Honor Code, scholars practice responsible leadership, accept personal responsibility, and develop strong character to create an atmosphere free from suspicion. Violation of the Honor Code include but is not limited to cheating, plagiarism, forgery, which are considered severe discipline problems and are subject to disciplinary action within the by-laws of the Honor Code. We believe that scholars can and must take responsibility for establishing and maintaining standards for their own behavior. At its core, the Honor Code is based on mutual respect and trust. It serves as a written model for what is expected from scholars. It also serves as a pledge to uphold the school's values while maintaining college preparation as the number one priority.

Taking responsibility for one's actions is vital to the maturity of each individual. The trust among all scholars in the school builds confidence in the overall school community and enables each scholar to be grounded in the leadership core values of INTEGRITY, INQUIRY, CHOICES, and REFLECTION which guide the scholar's every decision.

Teachers may require scholars to write the full honor code on major assignments. Actions or attempted actions that run counter to these perceptions are violations to the honor code.

- A scholar's word is expected to be the complete truth; therefore, lying and forgery are violations of the honor code.
- A scholar's work is expected to be his/her own, unless properly credited; therefore, plagiarism and cheating are violations of the honor code.
- The property of others is to be respected; therefore, stealing no matter how minor is a violation of the honor code.

In situations that seem unclear, it is each scholar's responsibility to check with the teacher or Campus Director regarding the honor code. Ignorance of the honor code will not be an excuse for a violation. Scholars who witness an honor code violation are required to report the action to the teacher who will notify the Campus Director. Witnessing an honor code violation and reporting it constitutes honorable behavior and is an expectation for all scholars. Scholars may opt to report a violation through an anonymous referral. Working together, we can ALL create a community of learners that value hard work, creativity, and commitment to college success. It is crucial that every member of the school community – scholars, parents, staff, and trustees – understands the importance of the school Honor Code and strives to maintain its integrity.



Academic Honesty

Scholars are expected to submit assignments, tests, quizzes, essays, and other work that are the result of their independent academic efforts. Forms of academic dishonesty include, but are not limited to, the following:

Plagiarism includes, but is not limited to:

- Copying word for word and turning in as your own work information from books, magazines, essays, the Internet, etc.
- Rewording or rewriting text and information from documents not originally written by you and turning it in as your own work without proper citation.
- Paraphrasing with minimal word changes (citing the source or not).
- Borrowing ideas and patterns of thought without proper citation.
- Printing an essay from the Internet and turning it in as your own work.
- Cheating is dishonesty for one's own gain. Cheating includes, but is not limited to:
 - Using a "cheat sheet" or other unauthorized notes during a test or quiz.
 - Looking at someone else's paper for an answer on a test or quiz and changing an answer.
 - Having someone else do all or part of your homework or assignment for you
 - Failing to mark an answer wrong when self-grading.
 - Telling others or asking others the content of an exam or quiz.
 - Giving a scholar or using an old test without teacher permission.
 - Looking at an exam prior to taking it without teacher permission.
 - Copying someone else's homework or other assignment.
 - Splitting an assignment into parts and doing a section, sharing it with others and copying the rest from someone without teacher permission.
 - Collaborating on any assignment unless the teacher has specifically designated it as a collaborative assignment.
 - Using old assignments written by you or someone else instead of creating new work.
 - Using an online translator or other translation in place of your own.

Consequences of Academic Dishonesty

If a scholar is suspected of plagiarism or any other form of academic dishonesty, the f following procedure will be followed:



- The scholar's exam, test, or quiz, or assignment will be confiscated by the teacher.
- The paper, exam, test, quiz, or assignment will be submitted to an administrator for consideration.
- The scholar will be required to meet with the teacher and the Campus Director for review of the scholar's work and, if found in violation of this policy and Uplift Scholar Code of Conduct, receive appropriate consequences in line with the severity of the offense. These may include:
- Formal Choice Management Referral write-up;
- Grade reduction on plagiarized work;
- Re-do of plagiarized work;
- Counseling and attendance at Academic Integrity Roundtable with the Dean of Scholars;
- Completion of community service hours;
- Enrollment in academic probation.
- Several instances of plagiarism or academic dishonesty may lead to suspension or expulsion.

(See also Appendix G – Uplift Grading Policy for Grades 6-12).

PHYSICAL EDUCATION PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS

Scholars are required to earn 1 credit in Physical Education before graduation. A scholar may be excused from activity due to health reasons for a maximum of three days with a note from a parent given to the PE teacher. If it is necessary to be excused for a period longer than three days, a doctor's note must be provided to the school. The scholar is still responsible for attending class and learning the curriculum even if physical restrictions prevent the scholar from actively participating in the program. All scholars are expected to wear the appropriate uniform in order to participate in physical education activities.

Off-Campus P.E.

Although we are supportive of our many scholars who participate in a variety of athletic activities outside of the school curriculum, approval for off-campus Physical Education will be at the discretion of the school administration. Scholars interested in this option should contact the Campus Director.



Athletics - Credit

Scholars who participate on an athletic team may receive Physical Education credit in lieu of PE class. Contact the team coach for information about this option. (In Scholar Athletic code)

Athletic and Extracurricular Activities

Philosophy Statement

We believe that physical activity is an integral component of a scholar's intellectual and emotional development. The athletic program of the school is designed to complement and foster our academic goals. We offer every scholar the opportunity to participate in a variety of programs provided they are able to maintain a level of academic performance consistent with our school mission. Our goal is the development of our scholars who are able to meet and balance the demands of our rigorous curriculum as well as the challenges of our sports programs

Eligibility and Commitment Requirements

To be eligible to participate in competitions or performances for extracurricular activities a scholar must have no grade below a 70 in any class at a nine-week marking period.

Exception: The first grade check for eligibility will be at the end of the 6-week period at the beginning of each year. (Required by UIL). Grades in AP/IB/Honors courses will be included. Quality points will not be factored into the grade to determine eligibility. Scholars enrolled in AP/IB courses may have one grade per scholar per semester exempted from the no grade below 70 rule. The grade may not be below 60 and must be in an AP/IB course. Grades in regular courses are not exempted. The scholar must attend mandatory tutorials in the failed course until the grade is raised to passing. Only one grade per scholar per semester may be exempted. Failure to attend all tutorials will result in loss of the exemption.

- After the first six-week report period, grades for eligibility will be taken each nine weeks.
- A scholar failing at a nine-week period will lose eligibility to compete.
- Eligibility may be regained at any three-week progress period if the progress report in the failed class or classes indicates a passing grade. Three-week progress reports will not be used to withdraw a scholar's eligibility, only to restore it. A scholar may not regain eligibility before a three-week progress report period.



The calendar will note on which day the books close for a given marking period. From that date each scholar has a seven calendar day grading period to compete or perform before any restriction to participation occurs. Any grace days taken at the beginning of the period of ineligibility will be added to the end of the period. The ineligibility period is in effect for fifteen consecutive school days.

For additional information on eligibility, please see your campus Athletic Director.

Scholar Athletic Code

The opportunity to participate in the athletic program at is a privilege available to all scholars. Because of the public nature of athletic programs sponsored by the district, scholars choosing to participate are expected to conduct themselves as leaders at all times during their season of participation and between consecutive seasons in a manner that will reflect the high standards and ideals of Uplift and its community. These high personal standards for conduct promote maximum achievement, safe performances, commitment to excellence in health and conditioning, and fulfill responsibilities as scholar leaders by setting a positive example for other scholars. Scholars who fail to do their homework or who receive an office referral may not be allowed to participate in events and practices and will be at the discretion of the school administration.

Sportsmanship is not only expected, it is mandated. Good sportsmanship eliminates problems and makes for a rewarding experience for those who witness and participate in athletic events. Scholar must remember to abide by the following:

- Maintain self-control at all times,
- Show respect for opponents and officials.
- Parents who bring younger children to athletic events, must ensure those children sit or stand with the parent. Children should not be running around the gymnasium, hallway or athletic field.

Scholars must meet the standards for interscholastic eligibility as outlined by the University Interscholastic League (UIL). Copies of these rules and regulations may be obtained from the school athletic coordinator upon request. The expectations for being a participant in a school's athletic program, including specific eligibility requirements, training rules and team rules will be communicated to team members at the beginning of the season of participation. All program expectations and team rules will be in writing. Any athlete in a District-sponsored athletic activity who willfully performs any act that substantially interferes with or is detrimental to the orderly operation of Uplift's athletic programs shall be subject to discipline. As participants in athletic programs, scholars are faced with



choices. If a scholar's choices interfere, impede, hinder their personal or group/team performance or render the individual as unfit to serve as a representative(s) of Uplift's schools, they forfeit the privilege to participate. Misconduct by participants in the athletic program at any time, on or off campus, school related and/or non-school activities during the season of participation and between consecutive seasons of participation constitutes cause for discipline including denial of participation in and/or removal from the athletic program.

Other Qualifications

A scholar who is ineligible to compete or perform in extracurricular activities may continue to practice or rehearse with the team or troupe during the period of ineligibility. All ineligible scholars may be required to attend tutorials in failed classes and must be excused from rehearsal/practice without penalty. A scholar who fails a course in the 4th Quarter yet passes the course for the year will be ineligible for competition or performance until the sixth-week marking period of the next academic year. A scholar who fails a course for the year but makes up and passes the course in the summer will be eligible to compete and perform the next school year.

In the time period from 12:01 a.m. Monday through 4:00 p.m. on Friday no team or other activity may practice, rehearse, or meet for more than 8 hours. This time limitation is exclusive of games or performances or other competition events. The Campus Director is responsible for ensuring that grades of scholars in extracurricular activities are monitored carefully and that scholars, coaches, and advisors are held accountable. In disputed cases the decision of the Campus Director will be final.

Athletic Participation Fee

Fees for participation in academics vary by the sport or activity. Please contact the athletic department for information on the required fees.

CLUBS AND ORGANIZATIONS

Participation in clubs and organizations is a privilege that allows scholars the opportunity to develop leadership skills, special talents, and new interests. Participation is a privilege, and therefore, scholars must meet all the requirements set forth in this handbook. The school recognizes that the learning process is not confined to the classroom and that school life and social interchange are very important aspects of the educational process. We endeavor to provide a well-balanced extracurricular program. To supplement the basic educational programs and to provide opportunities for scholars to learn in various school settings, a comprehensive extracurricular



activity program is available. Each school activity is organized to accomplish one or more of the following major goals:

- 1. School service: perform various activities to enhance the school's academic function.
- 2. Community service: support a community activity in line with the functions of the scholar group.
- 3. Fundraising activities: raise money to carry out defined activities.
- 4. Social activities: provide an opportunity for scholars to socialize through group activities.

Each extracurricular activity should complete at least one activity corresponding to the above stated goals each year. A list of available extra-curricular activities will be provided at the beginning of the school year.

Student Council

The student body elects the Student Council that is responsible for organizing social activities on behalf of the scholars and for determining scholar needs and opinions on matters affecting them. The Student Council meets regularly and works closely with both the student body and administration in an effort to build a stronger school community.

BEYOND THE CLASSROOM

Community Service: Scholars are expected to participate in age-appropriate community service work for Grades 6 - 12, and scholars in grades 9 - 12 are expected to either complete their hours for their Community, Service, and Action project, or 100 hours to meet the Uplift graduation requirement.

Field Trips: Scheduled field trips are an important part of the school curriculum. Parents will be notified in writing when field trips are planned. Permission/Release forms must be signed by the parent and presented to the field trip organizer before a scholar is permitted to participate in a field trip activity.

College Trips: Uplift grants scholars the unique opportunity to take part in college trips which allows scholars the opportunity to visit colleges within Texas and outside of Texas. In order to attend, scholars must meet academic and behavioral expectations of the school. (See the RTC Dean on campus for the requirements.)



HOMEWORK AND TESTING GUIDELINES:

Middle and Upper School Homework:

Diligent and consistent study is vital to academic success and college preparation at the school. Homework is a critical extension and review of learning. Because Uplift schools are preparing scholars for college, the courses often mirror the content, rigor, and expectations of the coursework required of scholars in honors, advanced placement, and or IB classes; therefore, scholars should expect more preparation time. Experience has shown that this amount of homework is necessary for success in a college preparatory school. Even when a formal assignment may not be given, a review of the material covered that day is still required. Scholars who fail to complete homework assignments may be required to attend study hall period after regular school hours or at the teacher's discretion assigned the same day the work is due. Scholars failing to consistently complete homework assignments will be assigned the discipline consequence according to the school behavior management system.

Homework -Primary

Homework in primary school is also important and the purpose of any home assignment is to reinforce and practice classroom instruction. Parents should review homework to ensure that the child has completed the homework. In addition to homework, scholars should spend 20 minutes of reading for enrichment every evening.

Late Work, Reassessments, and Grading:

Uplift's Grading Policy for Grades 6-12, (attached as Exhibit F), sets out Uplift's expectations for grading, academic dishonesty and reassessments. You can expect these guidelines to be discussed with your scholar and with you. If you have questions about these expectations, please review to this policy or visit with the Campus Director.

STAAR Testing and Remediation

Uplift is committed to scholar success on the State of Texas Assessment of Academic Readiness (STAAR) and takes seriously its obligation to provide scholars the support and assistance they need to succeed. All scholars enrolled in STAAR tested grade levels (3 – 8) and STAAR EOC tested subjects (Algebra 1, English 1, Biology, English 2, and US History) will be assessed quarterly to ensure that they are making appropriate progress through the required STAAR and STAAR EOC curriculum. Scholars who are not making satisfactory progress will receive remedial help. Scholars who have failed a STAAR or STAAR EOC test in the previous year may be **required** to attend academic support classes / tutorials when the school offers them in the areas in which the standard was not met. In some cases, this may be an on-going, regularly scheduled class. In others, it may be an



intense tutorial for a period prior to the retest in May and June for STAAR Reading and Math for grades 5 and 8, and July and December for EOC tested courses.

College Testing

PSAT

All scholars in grade 11 will take the PSAT in October during the school day and must sign up with the College Counselor. The PSAT tests have a fee, but fee waiver forms are also available for qualifying scholars for this test.

SAT and ACT

Applications for taking the SAT and ACT are available in the counselor's office. Fee waiver forms for these tests are also available in the counselor's office. Scholars in Grades 11 and 12 usually take these tests.

As of spring 2014, all juniors will take an official ACT test during the school day that does not require the scholars to register or pay for the test.

SCHOLARS WITH EXCEPTIONALITIES OR SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES

Service Assistance/Animal Use by Scholars:

A parent of a scholar or adult scholar who uses a service/assistance animal because of the scholar's disability must submit a request in writing to the Campus Director before bringing the service/assistance animal on campus. Written requests will be reviewed and responded to in writing within ten school days.

Note: All service animals must meet the Service Animal Standards as outlined in the Section 504 Operating Guidelines and/or Special Education Policies and Procedures.

Aiding Students Who Have Learning Difficulties or Who Need Special Education or Section 504 Services

For those students who are having difficulty in the regular classroom, all school districts and open enrollment charter schools must consider tutorial, compensatory, and other academic or behavior support services that are available to all students, including a process based on Response to Intervention (RtI). The implementation of RtI has the potential to have a positive impact on the ability of districts and charter schools to meet the needs of all struggling students.

If a student is experiencing learning difficulties, his or her parent may contact the individual(s) listed below to learn about the school's overall general education referral or



screening system for support services. This system links students to a variety of support options, including making a referral for a Special Education evaluation or for a Section 504 evaluation to determine if the student needs specific aids, accommodations, or services. A parent may request an evaluation for Special Education or Section 504 services at any time.

Special Education Referrals

If a parent makes a written request for an initial evaluation for Special Education services to the director of special education services or an administrative employee of the school district or open enrollment charter school, the district or charter school must respond no later than 15 school days after receiving the request. At that time, the district or charter school must give the parent a prior written notice of whether it agrees to or refuses to evaluate the student, along with a copy of the *Notice of Procedural Safeguards*. If the school district or charter school agrees to evaluate the student, it must also give the parent the opportunity to give written consent for the evaluation.

Please note that a request for a Special Education evaluation may be made verbally and does not need to be in writing. Districts and charter schools must still comply with all federal prior written notice and procedural safeguard requirements and the requirements for identifying, locating, and evaluating children who are suspected of being a child with a disability and in need of special education. However, a verbal request does not require the district or charter school to respond within the 15-school-day timeline.

If the district or charter school decides to evaluate the student, it must complete the student's initial evaluation and evaluation report no later than 45 school days from the day it receives a parent's written consent to evaluate the student. However, if the student is absent from school during the evaluation period for three or more school days, the evaluation period will be extended by the number of school days equal to the number of school days that the student is absent.

There is an exception to the 45-school-day timeline. If a district or charter school receives a parent's consent for the initial evaluation at least 35 but less than 45 school days before the last instructional day of the school year, it must complete the written report and provide a copy of the report to the parent by June 30 of that year. However, if the student is absent from school for three or more days during the evaluation period, the June 30th due date no longer applies. Instead, the general timeline of 45 school days plus extensions for absences of three or more days will apply.

Upon completing the evaluation, the district or charter school must give the parent a copy of the evaluation report at no cost.



Additional information regarding special education is available from the district or charter school in a companion document titled *Parent's Guide to the Admission, Review, and Dismissal Process*.

Contact Person for Special Education Referrals:

The designated person to contact regarding options for a student experiencing learning difficulties or regarding a referral for evaluation for special education services is:

Contact Person: Annette Enright, Director of Special Education

Phone Number: (469) 621-8500

Section 504 Referrals:

Each school district or charter school must have standards and procedures in place for the evaluation and placement of students in the district's or charter school's Section 504 program. Districts and charter schools must also implement a system of procedural safeguards that includes notice, an opportunity for a parent or guardian to examine relevant records, an impartial hearing with an opportunity for participation by the parent or guardian and representation by counsel, and a review procedure.

Contact Person for Section 504 Referrals:

The designated person to contact regarding options for a student experiencing learning difficulties or regarding a referral for evaluation for Section 504 services is:

Contact Person: Rebecca Allen, Director of 504 and Evaluation Services

Phone Number: (469) 621-8500

Additional Information:

The following websites provide information and resources for students with disabilities and their families.

- Legal Framework for the Child-Centered Special Education Process
- Partners Resource Network
- Special Education Information Center
- Texas Project First



DISCIPLINE/CHOICE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Uplift schools create safe and supportive learning environments for all scholars. Behavior management systems are used to teach scholars self-management, self-discipline, and conflict management so that scholars can meet Uplift's high expectations and positively contribute to their communities. In addition to misconduct prohibited by the Scholar Code of Conduct, and discipline processes that are consistent across all schools, each Uplift school has a system for managing scholar behavior which may include merits/demerits, interventions, and/or appropriate consequences. The school-specific behavior management system will be shared with the scholars and parents at the beginning of each school year and will be added to the online Scholar Handbook. However, with respect to discipline consequences that may result in out of school suspension or expulsion, the Scholar Code of Conduct will govern. (See Appendix A for Scholar Code of Conduct.)

Interrogations and Searches

School administration may search a scholar or scholar's property with reasonable suspicion. Vehicles on school property are also subject to search. Campus Directors and teachers have the right to question scholars regarding their conduct or the conduct of others.

Searches of scholar's outer clothing and pockets may be conducted if reasonable suspicion exists. If law enforcement authorities are involved in the search, the search shall be conducted according to the procedures followed by such authorities.

UNIFORM AND DRESS

Each Uplift school has a uniform and dress code which requires scholars to wear certain prescribed uniform dress and maintain appropriate grooming and other standards for personal appearance. The school believes that the uniform and dress code contribute to a positive school culture and also foster a spirit of teamwork in the School community. The uniform and dress code also helps to establish a safe environment where outsiders are easily recognized.

Neat, clean grooming for school is expected at all times. Each scholar is responsible for his or her compliance with the dress and uniform code during school hours. Parents are responsible for ensuring that their child complies with the dress code before their child comes to school. The specific dress and uniform requirements for the school will be provided to scholars and families prior to the start of the school year and will be included in the appendix to this handbook. Violations of the dress code will result in disciplinary action in accordance with the school's behavior management plan.



Financial Assistance

Any parent who is in need of financial assistance to purchase school uniforms should contact the Community Engagement and Enrollment Coordinator or Campus Director.

PARENT LEGAL AND INFORMATION NOTICES

Scholar Records Access and Privacy

The Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) affords parents and scholars over 18 years of age certain rights with respect to the scholar's educational records. These rights include the following:

- The right to inspect and review the scholar's education records within 45 days of the day the school receives a request for access.
- The right to seek amendment of the scholar's educational records that the parent or eligible scholar believes to be inaccurate.
- The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the scholar's education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.
- The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the school to comply with the requirements of FERPA.[Contact Family Policy Compliance Office, U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland Ave. SW, Washington D.C. 20202-5920.]

Directory Information

Certain information about Uplift students is considered director information and will be released to anyone who follows the procedures for requesting the information unless the parent or guardian objects to the release of the directory information about the scholar. During the online enrollment process, parents and guardians will have the opportunity to designate whether they give permission for disclosure of directory information. Additionally, parents may notify the school in writing if they wish to opt out of directory information.

Uplift has designated the following categories of information as directory information: scholar name, address, date of birth, grade level, photograph, dates of attendance,



participation in recognized activities and sports, and weight and height of members of athletic teams.

Uplift shall only release directory information (1) to military recruiters and institutions of higher education, as required by law, and (2) for limited school/District-sponsored purposes. For third-party requesters, directory information shall include scholar's name only.

Parent Right to Access

Parents, whether married, separated, or divorced, have a right to access their child's educational records unless a court order specifically restricts that right. Parents are also entitled to access their child's medical records.

Inappropriate Use of Technology

Scholars are prohibited from sending or posting electronic messages that are abusive, obscene, sexually oriented, threatening, harassing, or intended to harm others. This prohibition applies to conduct off school property if it results or could result in a substantial disruption of the educational environment. Scholars are also prohibited from using cell phones to video any scholar or staff member without their knowledge or consent at any time on school or at school sponsored or authorized activities. Any person disseminating, transferring, or sharing obscene, sexually oriented, lewd, or otherwise illegal images or other content will be disciplined according to the Scholar Code of Conduct and may, in certain circumstances, be reported to law enforcement. The Technology Acceptable Use Policy is included in the online registration form and will be posted to the school website and may be added to this handbook as an appendix.

Pledge of Allegiance/Minute of Silence

Each school day, scholars will recite the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States flag and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas flag. Parents may submit a written request to the Campus Director at the school office to excuse their scholar from reciting a pledge.

One minute of silence will follow recitation of the pledges. During the one-minute period, each scholar may choose to reflect, pray, meditate, or engage in any other silent activity that is not likely to interfere with or distract others.

Equal Access – Free Speech

Uplift believes that it is important for scholars to learn the meaning and practice of freedom of speech while in school. However, the school administration retains the right to make



decisions concerning free speech and equal access in the school to ensure an orderly and disciplined school environment that is conducive to learning.

Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment ("PPRA")

Scholars who are 18 or are emancipated minors and parents are afforded certain rights under the PPRA with respect to surveys, collection and use of information. Scholars will not be required to participate without parental consent in any survey, analysis, or evaluation – funded in whole or in part by the U.S. Department of Education – that concerns:

- 1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the scholar or the scholar's parent;
- 2. Mental or psychological problems of the scholar or the scholar's family;
- 3. Sexual behavior or attitudes;
- 4. Illegal, antisocial, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior;
- 5. Critical appraisal of individual with whom the scholar has a close family relationship;
- 6. Relationships privileged under law, such as relationships with lawyers, physicians, and ministers:
- 7. Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the scholar or parents; or
- 8. Income, except when the information is required by law and will be used to determine the scholar's eligibility to participate in a special program or to receive financial assistance under such a program.

Parents will be able to inspect the survey or other instrument and any instructional materials used in connection with such a survey, analysis, or evaluation.

"Opting Out" of Surveys and Activities

Parents have a right to receive notice of and deny permission for their scholar's participation in:

- 1. Any survey concerning the private information listed above, regardless of funding;
- 2. School activities involving the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information gathered from their scholar for the purpose of marketing or selling that information;
- 3. Any non-emergency, invasive physical examination, or screening required as a condition of attendance, administered and scheduled by the school in advance and not necessary to protect the immediate health and safety of the scholars (exceptions are hearing, vision, or scoliosis screen, or any physical exam or screening permitted or required under state law).



Media Release and Use of Photographs:

Uplift and the school may use scholar photographs for school and Uplift publications and marketing materials, including media use. Consent forms are included in the online enrollment. Objections to the use of photographs should be noted at the time of online enrollment. Changes during the school year may be made by contacting the school office and completing a revised media release.

School Closings or Delay

Cancellations and delays will be communicated to parents via phone call, text and email using an automated system. Additionally, this information will be posted on the school website, NBC (Channel 5), and TELEMUNDO (Channel 39).

Emergency Preparedness:

Uplift and the school have an emergency operation plan for addressing emergencies at the school and within the Uplift network. Regular drills are conducted throughout the school year. Questions about the school plans or drills should be addressed to the Campus Operations Director.

Equal Opportunity – Nondiscrimination:

No administrative officer or employee of the school, acting on his/her official capacity, may discriminate on the basis of a person's sex, race, religion, color, sexual orientation, gender identity or national origin regarding personnel practices, including the assigning, hiring, promoting, compensating, and discharging of employees, and/or the use of facilities, awarding contracts, and participation in programs.

No scholar shall, on the basis of sex, race, religion, color, sexual orientation or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any education program or activity sponsored by Uplift except as specifically provided in the Title IX implementing regulations.

No qualified disabled person shall, on the basis of handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity sponsored by this school district except as specifically provided in the Section 504 implementing regulations.

Inquiries regarding any of these policies should be directed to the Campus Director or the Title IX Coordinator at the Uplift Central Management Office.



Drug and Alcohol-Free School:

The school is a drug-free and alcohol-free environment. All scholars are prohibited from the possession, use, sale, or distribution or attempt to possess, use, sell, or distribute; or from being under the influence of a controlled substance or dangerous drug (as defined by law) or alcohol or any alcoholic beverage, or any abusable or volatile chemical substance, or any intoxicant or behavior-altering drug on school premises or off school premises at a school-related activity, function, or event. Scholars who violate this provision will be subject to discipline consequences as outlined in the Code of Conduct and may also result in notice to the police.

No Tobacco Use

No tobacco use is allowed on school premises or at school sponsored activities. This prohibition includes electronic or "vapor" cigarettes. Scholars may be disciplined for violation of this prohibition according to the Code of Conduct. Parents are expected to comply with this restriction whenever they are on the school campus.

Teacher Qualifications – Parent's Right to Know:

All parents have the right to know the professional qualifications of their child's teacher. Professional qualifications include whether the teacher is certified in the grade level or subject he or she is teaching, the baccalaureate and or graduate degree he or she holds, and the field of discipline of his or her degree or certification. Uplift prides itself on hiring qualified individuals who are outstanding teachers for all our scholars. If you wish to know any of this information regarding your child's teacher, please make a written request to the Campus Director.

Career and Technology Nondiscrimination:

Uplift Education offers support to school district for career and technical education programs in Science, Technology, Engineering & Math; Arts, A/V Technology, and Communications; Health Science; and Information Technology. Admission to these programs is based on interest and aptitude, age appropriateness, academic achievement, state and local policy, class space available, and any course pre-requisites.

It is the policy of Uplift not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex or disability in its CTE programs, services or activities as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.



It is the policy of Uplift not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, handicap, or age in its employment practices as required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended; and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.

Uplift will take steps to assure that lack of English language skills will not be a barrier to admission and participation in all education and CTE programs. For information about your rights or grievance procedures, please contact the Title IX Coordinator and/or the Director of 504 Services at the CMO, (Names will be listed on Uplift website.)

Military Recruiter Access:

- 1. ACCESS TO SCHOLAR RECRUITING INFORMATION- Notwithstanding section 444(a)(5)(B) of the General Education Provisions Act and except as provided in paragraph (2), each local educational agency receiving assistance under this Act shall provide, on a request made by military recruiters or an institution of higher education, access to secondary school scholar's names, addresses, and telephone listings.
- 2. CONSENT- A secondary school scholar or the parent of the scholar may request that the scholar's name, address, and telephone listing described in paragraph (1) not be released without prior written parental consent, and the local educational agency or private school shall notify parents of the option to make a request and shall comply with any request. This "opt-out" consent is included in the online enrollment. Parents and/or scholars may opt-out also by providing written notice to the Campus Director.
- 3. SAME ACCESS TO SCHOLARS- Each local educational agency receiving assistance under this Act shall provide military recruiters the same access to secondary school scholars as is provided generally to post- secondary educational institutions or to prospective employers of those scholars.

Scholar or Parent Complaints and Concerns

Uplift encourages parents and scholars to seek prompt resolution of any complaints or concerns. Scholar and parent concerns can usually be resolved by an informal phone call or conference with the teacher or the Campus Director who is the subject of the complaint. If that process is not satisfactory, parents are encouraged to contact the Managing Director for the school. If satisfactory resolution is not achieved, parent complaints or concerns may be brought to the to the Uplift Board of Directors. (See Uplift Parent Grievance Policy – Appendix H and posted on Uplift website.)



STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES

Uplift's Department of Student Support Services oversees wraparound programs, services and prevention efforts that directly benefit Uplift scholars. This includes delivery of services for homeless/foster populations, prevention programs, social-emotional learning, scholar discipline, crisis response efforts and social/behavioral counseling. Please contact the Campus Director or the school's Social/Behavioral Counselor if you have any questions about these services.

Social/Behavioral Counseling Services

All scholars at Uplift Education have access to mental health counseling services provided by the Social/Behavioral Counselor assigned to their school. Uplift Education implements a comprehensive counseling program which includes direct counseling services, guidance curriculum and system support services. Guidance lessons occur multiple times throughout the year in all grade levels and promote the development of positive mental health habits and skills. Referrals for individual counseling may come from school leadership, staff, parents/guardians, or students may self-refer. Any parent/guardian may revoke their consent for their child to receive counseling services (with the exception of emergency situations) by submitting this request in writing to the Social/Behavioral Counselor or the campus Academic Director.

McKinney-Vento Homeless Services

All scholars who meet criteria through the McKinney-Vento Homeless Act are eligible to receive additional services and support through Uplift Education. Residency questionnaires are distributed annually to determine eligibility for the program. A family that is experiencing homelessness, or the possibility of homelessness, should contact the Social/Behavioral Counselor assigned to their school for more information.

Services for Scholars in Foster Care

Families participating in foster care may be eligible to receive additional support and services through Uplift Education. Qualifying families should contact the Social/Behavioral Counselor assigned to their campus for additional information.

Prevention Programming

Uplift Education strives to serve as an industry leader in prevention programming for all scholars. The goal of this programming is to prevent dangerous or risky behaviors from developing or occurring. Depending on their grade level, staff and scholars receive annual



trainings on topics including: bullying prevention, substance use prevention, sexual harassment prevention, suicide prevention and teen dating violence prevention.

Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting

As educators and school staff, Uplift employees are required by law to report any suspicion of abuse or neglect of a child. Uplift cooperates with child abuse or neglect investigators as required by law. Uplift provides training to its teachers and staff in preventing and addressing incidents of abuse or neglect of scholars, including knowledge of likely warning signs indicating a scholar may be a victim of abuse or neglect. If a teacher or other staff member observes or suspects a scholar has been abused or neglected, the staff member is obligated by law to make a report to the Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS), and in appropriate circumstances, to the local police. The school may not interfere with an investigation of child abuse or neglect conducted by the DFPS. The school will permit the investigator to conduct the required interview with the scholar at any reasonable time at the school and without prior notice to the parent.

Allegations of abuse by school employee

Uplift takes very seriously any allegation of abuse of scholars by school staff. Any knowledge or suspicion of abuse of a scholar by a school employee should be reported immediately to the Campus Director, school counselor, or other administrative staff

Bullying

Uplift strives to provide a safe and caring environment for its scholars. Bullying of any kind is prohibited. Anyone with knowledge of or suspicion of bullying, including the alleged victim, should report such information to the Campus Director, Social/Behavioral Counselor, or other school or Uplift employee immediately. Investigations of bullying allegations will be conducted according to the Anti-Bullying Policy. (See Anti-Bullying Policy- Appendix B)

Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment of any kind is prohibited. Scholars shall not engage in unwanted and unwelcome verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature directed toward another scholar or school employee. This prohibition applies whether the conduct is by word, gesture, or any other sexual conduct, including requests for sexual favors. All scholars are expected to treat other scholars, school employees, volunteers, and community members with courtesy and respect, to avoid any behaviors known to be offensive, and to stop these behaviors



when asked or told to stop. A substantiated complaint against a scholar will result in appropriate disciplinary action, according to the nature of the offense.

<u>Reporting</u>: Any scholar or staff member who observes, or has knowledge of any allegations of, sexual harassment should report such information immediately to the Campus Director, school counselor or other school or Uplift employee. Investigations of such allegations will be conducted by the School according to established procedures.

CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM

School Meals

Uplift's Child Nutrition Program (CNP) vision is to provide "excellence in food and service." Uplift is committed to the responsibility and privilege of nutritiously educating our scholars. By offering an extensive variety of healthy menu choices, scholars learn and help establish the lifelong pattern of healthy eating. Uplift adheres to the standards of the National School Breakfast and Lunch Programs.

Meals are created by a Registered Dietitian to provide a variety of healthy options including vegetables, fruits, whole-grain rich items, protein-rich entrées and low-fat milk. Menus will be available to view at www.uplifteducation.org/cnp.

Meal Pricing

All but one Uplift schools participates in the National School Breakfast and Lunch Programs. The prices for subsidized meals are determined by the NSLP and specific meal prices are available at the school.

Free & Reduced-priced Meals

Scholars may qualify for free or reduced-price meals if their household meets the income eligibility guidelines for the National School Lunch or Breakfast program. Applications must be completed after July 1 each year to determine or maintain eligibility (unless directly certified). Applications can be completed online at www.uplifteducation.org/cnp. If you are directly certified, you will receive a letter from Child Nutrition indicating that your household qualifies without applying.

Prepayments

Prepayments for meals are required for all scholars. Pre-payments should be made at the start of each month. A FREE account for your scholar may be created online at www.schoolfcafe.com. By using this account, you can monitor your scholar's account



balance, view purchases and make deposits. Check or cash payment should be made directly with the café staff at your school using the account deposit envelope which can be found at the school. If you have any questions regarding prepayments, please contact the Kitchen Manager at your school.

You will receive an email when your scholar's account balance is low. Scholars will not be served the regular lunch if their account surpasses -\$10 and instead will be served an alternative meal. Should you have any questions about your scholar's account balance, please feel free to contact the Kitchen Manager at your scholar's campus.

Lunch Visitations

Due to limited lunch periods, visitors are generally not permitted. Parents must obtain prior approval from the Campus Director for any lunch visitation. Scholars with preapproved lunch visitors may be asked to eat in a designated area away from their normal lunch area. Parents may only bring lunch for their child.

SCHOLAR HEALTH INFORMATION

Uplift has health services staff at each school location to serve the health needs of our scholars and meet state health requirements. All health services are under the direction of the Director of Health Services for Uplift. Any questions or concerns about health needs of your child may be brought to the school health staff or to the Director of Health Services if necessary. The following information applies generally to all scholars.

Medication Administration:

Medications, nonprescription and prescription, may be administered at school by the health services staff or by a designated staff member who has been trained to administer medication. In general, medication should be administered at home whenever possible. For those medications which must be administered at school, the following procedures apply:

- 1. All medications; over the counter and prescription, must be in its original container, properly labeled, with a written request from the parent or legal guardian to administer the medication at school.
- 2. All medications, over-the-counter and prescription, must include the scholar's first and last name, date of birth, medication name, the amount requested to be given, the route, and time requested to administer the medication to the scholar. Over the counter medication administration will not exceed the dosage on the container label without written authorization from a licensed healthcare provider.



- **3.** Prescriptive and/or over-the-counter medication(s) will not be administered for more than 3 days unless there is written authorization from a licensed healthcare provider.
- 4. All medication must be checked into the health office/clinic upon arrival on campus. No scholar is allowed to carry or possess any medication at school (except rescue inhalers and Epi-pens once approved by the campus nurse). Any scholar found taking medication or giving medication to another scholar will be subject to disciplinary action.
- **5.** No more than a 30-day supply of medication will be accepted at a time.
- 6. Medication that has expired or is not picked up by the parent will be properly discarded after its expiration date or after the last day of school, which ever first occurs.
- 7. Medication purchased in a foreign country will not be administered to scholars unless the pharmacy is a U.S. FDA approved pharmacy.
- 8. Medication packaged as a "sample" must be accompanied by a copy of the prescription written by a licensed healthcare provider and must include the scholar's first and last name, date of birth, medication name, the amount requested to be given, the route, and time requested to administer the medication to the scholar.
- 9. Aspirin or products containing aspirin will not be given without a physician's order.
- 10. Parents are responsible for advising the school clinic that a medication has been discontinued or if there are any changes to the medication(s).
- 11. Uplift does not provide any over-the-counter medications for scholars.

Authorized district employees may administer medication(s) when a nurse is not available.

Asthma and Anaphylaxis Medication

Asthma and anaphylaxis are life-threatening conditions. Scholars with asthma and/or severe allergic reactions (anaphylaxis) are encouraged to provide an allergy action plan or asthma action plan provided by a licensed healthcare provider. Please contact the health office/clinic if you have any questions about these conditions or your scholar's treatment at school. Asthma Action Plans and Allergy Action Plans are available from the health office/clinic and will be available in the online enrollment as well as at



<u>www.uplifteducation.org</u>, under the Uplift Health Services tab. If your scholar has any activity restrictions due to weather or exertion, provide the health office/clinic with a physician's signed and dated note specifying the restrictions.

Scholars with asthma or anaphylaxis are entitled to possess and self-administer prescriptions medications for asthma or anaphylaxis conditions while on school property or a school-related event, if certain conditions are met. Check with the health office/clinic to see if your scholar meets criteria to self-carry and administer asthma or anaphylaxis medication(s).

Scholar possession and self-administration of asthma or anaphylaxis medication at school requires written authorization from the scholar's parent and physician or other licensed health care provider to be on file in the school office/health clinic indicating that the medication has been prescribed for the scholar who will be carrying the medication while at school. The scholar must have demonstrated to the scholar's physician or other licensed health care provider and the school nurse, if available, the skill level necessary to self-administer the prescription medication, including the use of any device required to administer the medication. The scholar must be capable of independently administering his or her own asthma or emergency anaphylaxis medication and must be knowledgeable about the medication and how to administer it.

With these safeguards in place, the scholar may possess and self-administer his or her prescribed medication, in compliance with the prescription or written instructions from the scholar's physician or other licensed health care provider during school hours or at school related events. Written authorizations to self-administer asthma or anaphylaxis medication must be updated annually.

Medication in a scholar's possession must be in an original container with a prescription label. Please note that most pharmacies will place a label on the inhaler device upon request.

Diabetes Management

Scholars with diabetes may possess equipment and medication used in the treatment of diabetes during the school day and at school-related events given certain conditions. According to Texas Health and Safety Code, a diabetes management and treatment plan must be developed and implemented by the scholars' parent and the physician responsible for the scholar's diabetes treatment. This plan must evaluate the scholar's ability to manage diabetes and his or her level of understanding of diabetes and must be signed by the parent and physician responsible for the scholar diabetes treatment. An individual health plan ("IHP") must be implemented by the school and/or school nurse and incorporate



components of the scholar's diabetes management and treatment plan. In accordance with the scholar's IHP, the school may permit a scholar to attend to management of his or her diabetes, which may include performing blood glucose level checks, administering insulin, treating hypoglycemia and hyperglycemia, possessing necessary monitoring and treatment equipment designed for diabetes care and attending to the management of his or her diabetes in the classroom, in any area of the school grounds, or at any school-related activity. The IHP must be updated annually.

Illness during School Hours

A scholar who becomes ill during school hours is to report to the teacher, who will then send him or her to the health clinic with a clinic pass. If the nurse or other health office provider determines that it is necessary for the scholar to go home, the parent will be contacted. No scholar is allowed to go home without the parent being notified. Scholars are not to call parents from cell phones asking to go home. Such calls are to be made from the school office or health office/clinic by school staff.

Scholars should generally stay home from school due to illness if any of the following are present:

- 1. Fever of 100 degrees Fahrenheit or higher (Scholars must be fever free for 24 hours with the use of an antipyretic, i.e. Tylenol, before returning to school);
- 2. Diarrhea in the past 24 hours;
- 3. Unknown rash; or
- 4. Ringworm of the scalp (remain home until cleared by a physician to return)

To protect scholars at school, scholars assessed with any of the signs or symptoms listed above may be sent home, upon the recommendation of the health care staff.

Immunizations Requirements

The State of Texas requires that every child in the state be immunized in accordance with an established immunization schedule in order to attend public school. To determine the specific number of doses that are required for your scholar, please read "2019-2020 Texas Minimum State Vaccine Requirements for Students Grades K-12." This document and more information about school vaccine requirements are available at the Texas Department of State Health Services ("DSHS") Immunization Branch website: www.immunizeTexas.com (click on the school/childcare requirements link.) Information on immunization requirements will also be on the School website.



Validation of immunization records by a physician or public health clinic is required for entering school. All scholars enrolling must submit an immunization record to the health office/clinic for approval. Documents signed by a physician or public health clinic listing each immunization and month, day, and year in which it was given will be accepted.

If a scholar is not current on immunizations or has not provided a record showing the scholar is current, the scholar will be excluded from school until evidence of compliance is provided, unless the scholar meets the requirements for provisional enrollment, or the parent submits to the school an affidavit in the form prescribed by law (and as described in Section 38.001 (c) of the Texas Education Code) or has a contraindication, signed by a licensed health care provider, stating the scholar is medically exempt due to an allergy or a health condition.

<u>Provisional Enrollment</u>: Provisional enrollment allows a scholar who meets certain specific criteria to be admitted to school on a temporary basis for up to 30 days. During this 30 day period, the parent is responsible for ensuring the scholar receives the necessary vaccines as fast as is medically feasible and/or providing a complete and current immunization records to the school Provisional enrollment allows a scholar to enroll in school in the following situations:

- A scholar is transferring from one Texas public school to another and is awaiting the transfer of the immunization record. The record must be received within the 30-day period or the scholar will be excluded from school.
- 2. A scholar has an immunization record that indicates the scholar has received at least one dose of each specified age-appropriate required vaccine. To remain enrolled, the scholar must complete the required subsequent dose in each vaccine series on schedule and as rapidly as is medically feasible and provide acceptable evidence of vaccination to the school.
- 3. Homeless scholars (as defined under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Improvement Act of 2001) may be enrolled pending receipt of immunization record or, if not received within the 30-day period, to remain enrolled, the scholar begins receiving the required vaccines.

<u>Immunization Records Reporting</u>: The school's record of a scholar's immunization history, while private in most instances, may be inspected by the Texas Education Agency, local health departments, and the Texas department of state health services



("DSHS") and transferred to other schools associated with the transfer of the scholar to those schools.

Injuries/Accident Insurance

The school does not carry insurance to cover medical treatment for scholar injuries at school and the school is not responsible for medical costs associated with a scholar's injury.

State Mandated Health Screenings for Scholars

Spinal Screening (scoliosis): The annual, state-required, spinal screening will be conducted for all children, who are attending public or private school must be screened for abnormal spinal curvature in accordance with the following schedule.

- Girls will be screened two times, once at age 10 (or fall semester of grade 5) and again at age 12 (or fall semester of grade 7).
- Boys will be screened one time at age 13 or 14 (or fall semester of grade 8).

The purpose of this program is to identify the scholars who may have spinal problems and to inform their parents, so the scholar may have a complete examination by their own physician. Scholars are checked individually by the school nurse or screening assistant. Scholars must remove their shirt for this exam. For this reason, we request that girls wear a sports bra or two-piece swimsuit top underneath their shirt on exam day. Parents will be notified of the results of the screening only if professional follow-up is necessary.

A student may be exempt from scoliosis screening if:

- The scholar is already actively under medical care by an appropriately licensed professional for one or more of the spinal problems for which spinal screening is performed. To claim this exception, the student must submit signed and dated documentation from the licensed professional to the school. The documentation must state that the student is under active, ongoing medical care for specific spinal problems.
- A scholar's parent or legal guardian executes an affidavit stating that spinal screening will be conducted by an individual other than the screener used by the school. The school may admit the scholar on a provisional basis for up to 60 days.
 The school may deny admission until the screening record of the scholar is provided.



 The screening conflicts with the tenets and practices of a recognized church or religious denomination of which the individual is a member. The parent or legal guardian must submit to the school an affidavit in lieu of the screening record stating the conflict. The affidavit must be submitted on or before the date spinal screening is scheduled.

Acanthosis Nigricans Screening: Acanthosis Nigricans (AN) is a skin condition that signals high insulin levels in the body. AN screening can help identify scholars who may run the risk of developing diabetes in the future. AN screening is done during the 3rd, 5th, and 7th grade vision and hearing screening. Parents will be notified if their child is found to have this skin marker for professional follow-up.

Vision and Hearing Screening: Vision and hearing screenings are conducted in preK – 4 years, kindergarten, 1st, 3rd, 5th, and 7th grades and for any other first time enrollees, for the purpose of identifying scholars with vision and hearing disorders. Parents will be notified of failed vision and/or hearing screenings for professional follow-up as necessary.

Updated Health Information

Parents are asked to keep the School Nurse and the Campus Director advised of any changes or concerns about their child's health or medical condition. The school will be best prepared to assist your child if you keep the school nurse aware of any changes or concerns. It is also important that you keep your contact information current so in the event of an emergency there is no delay in contacting you. Please contact the school nurse or the Director of Health Services at the Central Management Office (469-621-8500) if you have any questions or concerns about the child's health.

School-Based TeleHealth Program

The Children's Health School-Based TeleHealth Program, provided by Children's Health in partnership with Uplift, provides in-school virtual consultations with physicians through the use of mobile telehealth carts located in some of our health clinics, throughout the district. The carts connect a Children's Health Pediatric Group physician, or Pediatric Nurse Practitioner to a child who visits the school nurse's office with a complaint that may need to be seen by a doctor. During the school day, scholars can be evaluated for various complaints such as; skin rashes, respiratory issues, ear complaints, nose complaints, eye complaints, etc. Scholars who present with flu and strep like symptoms can also be evaluated by a physician via the telehealth program. Once a scholar has been evaluated by a licensed health care provider, an electronic prescription can be sent to the family's preferred pharmacy, when necessary. Currently, the School-Based TeleHealth Program is



located in most Uplift schools. Please check with the health clinic staff at the school to determine if your school is a participant.

Parents are required to register to take advantage of this program. Once registered, enrolled scholars can take advantage of the program throughout the school year. Registration forms must be updated each school year and can be found on our website www.uplifteducation.org and in the health clinics currently participating in the program.

ENGAGING FAMILIES

Uplift believes that parents are essential partners in the education of their children and research supports this belief. A parent is a child's first and most important teacher, and parents are a valuable support to their learning after they begin school. We rely on the guidance parents provide their children and the insights they provide to us as educators. The following information should be helpful for parents to engage with the school:

Communication

A healthy school environment provides ample and appropriate communication between all members of the school community. Communication requires regularly scheduled progress conferences and reports and timely responses to other issues that arise. If you feel this is not occurring, please contact your scholar's teacher first, then the appropriate Campus Director. Appropriate communication is respectful of the time, opinion and feelings of others. It is directed toward the person charged with solving the problem or knowing the answer to the question. To help you determine who the appropriate individual is to address an issue, please consult the school's directory or contact the Community Engagement and Enrollment Coordinator at the school.

Internet Communication

The Uplift website and the school website are primary sources of communication for our parent community. All families are encouraged to regularly view the websites for updated information. Please make the websites one of your "favorites." The school calendar is updated frequently and all important information is posted on the front page of the school website. Information about Uplift and the schools within the Uplift network is also posted on the Uplift website, as well as on the Uplift Facebook page and other social media sites



Parent/Teacher Conferences

Parents will be actively involved in their child's education. They will have scheduled meetings with their child and teacher periodically during the year to review goals and progress. Methods in which the child can be supported outside of school in order to expand on the learning occurring at school will be discussed. Parents will want to participate in the demonstration and presentation nights. They are encouraged to share their knowledge, talents and interests/expertise with scholars in large and small groups or with scholars working on individual projects.

<u>Translation Support:</u> If you need a translator to facilitate communication with the school, please contact the Community Engagement and Enrollment Coordinator at the school.

Parent Volunteers in Partnership

Strong parental involvement is a key component of any successful school. Parents, as well as relatives and friends, are encouraged to participate in a wide variety of volunteer opportunities if they are able. All potential parent volunteer opportunities will solely be posted on VOLY, our online volunteer management tool (https://uplift.voly.org/). All Uplift parents are encouraged to visit the Uplift VOLY website and sign up for an account. Once an account is created and a background check is passed, parents are welcome to browse the volunteer directory in VOLY and find opportunities to sign up as a volunteer.

In addition to staying engaged through VOLY, parents are also encouraged to join Volunteers in Partnership (VIP), an organized group of parents at the school. The Volunteer in Partnership (VIP) aims to:

- Facilitate communication between the school and parents as well as among parents;
- Provide essential support to the school and its staff;
- Promote age appropriate social activities for scholars; and
- Foster a sense of inclusion and community within our school family.

Please contact the Community Engagement and Enrollment Coordinator or the Campus Director at your school if you want more information about the VIP or volunteer opportunities.

VIP -Fundraising

The VIP may be engaged in fundraising, but all fundraising events are to be approved by the Campus Director, and if using the name of Uplift Education in the fundraising, also by the Chief Development Officer of Uplift. The purpose of requiring this approval is to ensure such activities are consistent with the educational mission and programs and are not in conflict with any other plans of the school. All funds raised by the VIP will be deposited



into a bank account under Uplift's tax identification number and managed by Uplift's finance department l, but the account will be identified as the school's enrichment or VIP account. Specific financial procedures for managing VIP funds are available from the Uplift CMO finance office.

Advocacy

Parents are an important voice in the effort to improve public schools and public charter schools in particular. Parents have the opportunity to participate in advocating for public schools and are encouraged to take an active part in the political process which affects our schoolsr and our schools. Please contact the Director of Government Affairs at the Central Management Office if you want to know more about Uplift's advocacy and how you can be a part of those efforts.

Volunteer Background Checks

All volunteers who will be working at the school or will have contact with scholars must consent to a background check conducted by the school. If you did not complete the Volunteer Background Consent form at the time of enrollment, please request a form from the school office to complete and return to the front office.

Visitors

Parents and other visitors are welcome to visit the school campus. However, visitors must first obtain approval from the school office before entering the school building beyond the front lobby. Uplift uses Raptor Technologies V-Soft visitor program to screen and identify those individuals who are listed as registered sexual offenders. Upon entering the school, a visitor will be required to present a valid state or government issued photo identification card (usually a driver's license) to the front desk attendant and it will be scanned into the Raptor system. Once completed, a visitor's badge will be issued to the visitor and must be worn conspicuously during the visit. When the visitor leaves the building, the badge should be returned to the front desk so that an entry can be made that the visitor has left the building. If you have any questions about the screening system, please contact the Campus Director.

With few exceptions, the delivery of private services to Uplift scholars by providers who are not formally contracted or employed by Uplift is prohibited on Uplift property.

Classroom Visits

Visits to individual classrooms during instructional time are permitted only with the approval of the Campus Director. Requests for such visits should be submitted to the



Campus Director who will consider the benefit of such a visit against the potential disruption to the class and instruction.

Waiver of Fees

Any family in need of financial assistance with any authorized school fees should contact the Campus Director of the school.



Parent/Scholar Handbook Acknowledgement Form

To ensure that parents and scholars have had the opportunity to receive this handbook and agree to review the Handbook, the school asks parents to sign the following acknowledgement form. The Campus Director or advisory teacher will collect the signed forms when returned to the school. The date for returning the forms will be communicated at the start of school.

We, the undersigned, acknowledge that the parent/scholar handbook is available online or in print at the school office and have read the parent/scholar handbook and we agree to follow the policies and procedures contained within it. As members of the school, we understand that failure to follow the expected policies and procedures may result in disciplinary action, loss of privileges, and possibly result in our scholar's expulsion from the school.

Scholar Name:	
Scholar Signature:	
Date:	
Parent/Guardian Signature:	
Parent/Guardian Signature:	
Date:	



APPENDIX

- (A) –CODE OF CONDUCT
- (B) ANTI-BULLYING POLICY
- (C) FREEDOM FROM DISCRIMINATION, HARASSMENT, AND RETALIATION SCHOLAR POLICY
 - (D) ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY (TECHNOLOGY)
 - (E) FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL ATTENDANCE
 - (F) CREDIT AND ACADEMIC POLICY
 - (G) GRADING POLICY GRADES 6-12
 - (H) PARENT GRIEVANCE POLICY
 - (I) CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM CHARGE POLICY
 - (J) DRESS AND UNIFORM REQUIREMENTS
 - (K) BEHAVIOR MANAGENT PLAN